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The Architecture

CITATION

The terrace pair of two storey brick houses knowvn as
'dJesmend! and "Arlston' (formexrly ('Benton') were erected
1880 for Ward Nicholson, part proprietor of the Vilcan
Foundry, Geelong's long established iron foundry. This
distinctive and elaborately enhanced terrace pair, with
finely detailed cast iren balcony, cement render mouldings
and interior is an important example of the terrace house
in Geelong, with detailing characteristic of the work of
Architoect, Alexander Davidson, a close friend of foundry-
man Ward Nicholson, and possibly the architect for this
exceptional semi-detached pair.
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City of Geelong Urban Conservation Study
Significant Sites

Jesmond, Arlston

Row Houses

32-34 Eastern Beach

(sce Geelong Regional Commission register)

History

Fart of R. Heath's 1861 Crowa Grant, this has been the
site of the curren| two-storey pair since their construction
in 18901 for the Humble & Nicholson iron foundry
co-owner and cngineer, Ward Nicholson.! When com-
plete, they were described as each of 8 rooms (plus a
kitchen and bathroom in later descriptions).” The ar-
chiteer, E. M. Blake designed the pair and Thomas Pes-
cott constructed it {using Northeote bricks), alter
acceptance of the his tender mid 1890,

Nicholson lived in 32 unil 1900, leasing out number 34
to men like Walter Smith (shipowner) and G. Willett, a
photographer.  Nicholson then moved to Yarra Strest
and leased the pair to James Ferrier and James Gardiner
{accountant),

By ¢1906 Ward Nicholson was dead and Robert W.
Nicholson was the new owner (and occupier of one of the
pair by ¢1910). Inthat period, occupicrs included Arthur
W. Dean (minister) and Harold Mathows, a dentist: all
generally of the professional classes. By ¢192() another
engineer, James Brown, owned and occupicd 32 and the
dentist, W.H. Harrison was at 34,

The William Humble Ward Nicholson & Simmaons
{eventually Humble

& Nicholson) fourdry commenced in 1861, laking over
William Croll’s business which had commenced in the
1830s°.  Born at Newcastle-on-Tyne, Ward Nicholson
had arrived in the Colony at the age of 19, in 1857, The
Cressv bridge. Geelang railway station and work at
Echuca Wharf were among the large contracts taken up
bv the irm.. On a wholesale basis. the firm made en-
gines, boilers, refrigerators, wool presses and iron cast-
ings, including verandah posts and iron palisade [unces,
such as used at 32-34 Eastern Beach.”

RBIB2L, &1 "unfinished’

REH1892, 6ll5-6; RE1895-6, 412

GA 22,790 enders. GHRC
RER1WY, 671-2; RB1WIZ, 669-70
RB1920, 6456

CHRC notes 290 draft GLUCS Vil 4
Surherland, p.154
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City of Geelong Urban Conservation Study
Significant Sites
Queen Anne villa style, this example is both early and
accomplished in application of details (doorway, pedi-
ments) as well as an advertisement for the firm's cast-iron
wares. The foundry was nearby in Little Malop Strect
(east of Yarra Strect).

External Integrity

Generally original, except for glazed-in balcony, (part).
Streetscape

An important corner site in a residential precinet.
Significance

Historically, although occupied for only a short period by
its first owner, the important Ward Nicholson, it is never-
theless a reflection of his tastes and his firm's products.
Architecturally, an important milestone in the develop-
ment of the Oueen Anne revival style in Victoria, a

popular style in the Edwardian cra, and a contributor to
a residential precinet.




